
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 28th October, 2024 
 

3.00 pm 
(Or on the rising of the Personnel Committee – 

whichever is later) 
 

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, 
Maidstone 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 



 



 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

SELECTION AND MEMBER SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
 

Monday, 28 October 2024, at 3.00 pm Ask for: Joel Cook 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone: 03000 416892 

   
Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the start of the meeting 

 
 

Membership (8) 
 
Conservative (5): Mr N J Collor (Chairman), Mr M C Dance, Mr R W Gough, 

Mr C Simkins and Mr D Jeffrey 
 

Liberal Democrat (1): 
 

Mr A J Hook 
 

Labour (1): Mr A Brady 
 

Green and 
Independent (1): 

Rich Lehmann 
 

Webcasting Notice 
 

Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
internet site or by any member of the public or press present.  The Chairman will confirm if 
all or part of the meeting is to be filmed by the Council. 
 
By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being filmed.  If you do not wish to 
have your image captured please let the Clerk know immediately. 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 
  
1 Substitutes  
 
2 Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.  
 
3 Member Role Descriptions (Pages 1 - 16) 
 
4 Member Remuneration Panel Appointment (Pages 17 - 28) 
 



EXEMPT ITEMS 
There are not fully exempt items on the agenda, however exempt appendices are provided 
for item 4.  If detailed discussion of these exempt papers is required, the Committee may 
resolve to move into closed session, at which point the press and public will be excluded. 

 
 
Benjamin Watts 
General Counsel 
03000 416814 
 
Friday, 18 October 2024 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  
From:   Ben Watts, General Counsel  
 
To:    Selection and Member Services Committee, 28 October 2024 
 
Subject: Member Role Descriptions 
 
Status: Unrestricted 
 
 
 
1. Introduction  
 
a) The Appendix sets out the current Member role descriptions.  

 
b) The role description for ‘All Members’ came as part of a recommendation of the 

independent Member Remuneration Panel (MRP) in June 2009. The MRP 
recommended that the Council adopt role descriptions for all positions to which 
a Special Responsibility Allowances was attached in July 2010. In consultation 
with the MRP, the role descriptions were updated in March 2012 as part of the 
adoption of the Cabinet Committee arrangements. The current set of role 
descriptions are as they were at this time.  

 
2. Role Descriptions: Review 
 
a) All of the roles for which there are descriptions still exist, though not all of them 

attract an SRA (specifically, Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group). These are 
as follows: 

 
• All Members 
• Leader of the Council 
• Deputy Leader of the Council 
• Cabinet Member 
• Deputy Cabinet Member 
• Chairman of the Council 
• Vice-Chairman of the Council 
• Committee Chair 
• Cabinet Committee Chair 
• Additional responsibilities for the Chair of the Scrutiny Committee 
• Additional responsibilities for the Chair of the Planning Applications 

Committee 
• Leader of an Opposition Group 
• Deputy Leader of an Opposition Group 

 
b) The legal, constitutional, and political context has changed since the 

descriptions were originally adopted.  It is therefore timely to review the existing 
ones. The Members’ Governance Working Group is considering the role 
descriptions as part of its work.  

 
c) This is the final year of the current 4-year Members’ Allowances Scheme and, 

following a recruitment exercise later in the year, the MRP will be asked to 
make recommendations for a replacement scheme.  
 

 
 Page 1

Agenda Item 3



  
3. Points to Consider 
 
a) It would be useful to be clear of the purpose of role descriptions. Members are 

not employees and so role descriptions are not the same as job descriptions 
for Officers with a contract of employment. Some aspects of the descriptions 
mirror aspects of the Constitution, such as the Leader chairing Cabinet 
meetings. Other aspects are broader ‘expectations’ of the roles.  
 

b) There is also a need to be mindful of the accountability aspects of the role 
descriptions. For example, perceived adherence to the role descriptions could 
potentially be used by individuals in reference to Member complaints.  

 
c) With the description of roles attracting SRAs, there is also a need to be mindful 

of other developments in the governance area. For example, the Grant 
Thornton governance review reported to the Governance and Audit Committee 
in October 2023 contained the following recommendation – “Roles which 
attract Special Responsibility Allowances are only held by members who have 
completed the required training and development for those roles.”1 Any formal 
connection between training/development and SRAs would need to follow a 
review and recommendation from the MRP.  

 
d) To raise awareness of the role descriptors (and any future updated versions), it 

is being recommended that a link to them be added alongside the Constitution 
and Appendix on the KCC website2. Although not part of the Constitution, this 
would be an appropriate place to make them available. 

 
e) There is one element of the role descriptor for Chairman of the Council which 

has been superseded by changes to the Constitution and needs removing - “To 
witness the sealing of official KCC legal documents in the period immediately 
after a County Council Election until such time as the Leader appoints his or 
her Cabinet.” Other wording does not reflect the usage in the Constitution – 
“Committee Chairman” rather than “Committee Chair.” 

 
4. Recommendation 

 
The Selection and Member Services Committee is asked to: 
 
a) Ask the Monitoring to remove the reference to sealing from the role 

descriptions of the Chairman of the Council and update role titles to align it with 
the Constitution.  
 

b) Ask the Monitoring Officer to arrange for a link to the Member role descriptions 
be placed on the KCC website with the Constitution. 
 

c) Request the Members’ Governance Working Group to report their 
recommendations on the role descriptions to this Committee in due course. 
 

d) Ask the Monitoring Officer to request of the Member Remuneration Panel that it 
considers the role descriptions as part of their next review of the Members’ 
Allowances Scheme. 
 

 
1 P.15, 
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s121463/Kent%20County%20Council%20Governance%
20Report%20Report.pdf  
2 https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/constitution  

Page 2

https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s121463/Kent%20County%20Council%20Governance%20Report%20Report.pdf
https://democracy.kent.gov.uk/documents/s121463/Kent%20County%20Council%20Governance%20Report%20Report.pdf
https://www.kent.gov.uk/about-the-council/how-the-council-works/constitution


  
 
5. Background Documents 
 
None. 
 
6. Report Author and Relevant Director  
 
Ben Watts, General Counsel  
03000 416814  
benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk 
 
Tristan Godfrey, Senior Governance Manager 
03000 411704 
tristan.godfrey@kent.gov.uk  

Page 3

mailto:benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk
mailto:tristan.godfrey@kent.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix - Member Role Descriptions 
 
ALL MEMBERS (as representatives elected by their division) 
 
Responsible to: Kent County Council and the people of Kent. 
 
Role purpose: To represent the views of their local community and the people of 
Kent generally within and outside the Council. 
 
1. To represent the individual constituents within their Divisions, undertaking 

casework on their behalf and serving all equally. 
 
2. To liaise with Cabinet Members, other Council Members, Officers, and other 

service providers in ensuring that local community needs are considered and 
identified. 

 
3. To encourage and promote two-way communication within the local community 

about the decisions of Council, information about Council services and Council 
procedures. 

 
4. To represent the views, aspirations, and concerns of the people of Kent as a 

whole, providing the focus for local democracy. 
 
5. To participate in full Council meetings to: 
 

• determine the strategic priorities and objectives of the Council, 
• approve the annual budget and capital programme and the Council's Policy 

framework, 
• approve the scheme of remuneration for Members, 
• appoint and remove the Leader of the Council, 
• appoint and dismiss the Head of Paid Service, 
• approve the Constitution and any amendment to it, and 
• approve any other matters which by law can only be determined by the 

Council or one referred to Council. 
 
6. To hold the Leader and Cabinet to account through Scrutiny. 

 
7. To participate as a member of the Cabinet, committee or advisory panel to which 

they are appointed. 
 

8. If appointed, to represent the Council on outside bodies. 
 

9. To monitor the effectiveness of service delivery and the appropriateness of 
policy across the County. 
 

10. To ensure the probity of Council financial and other transactions (including 
through audit and standards processes). 
 

Page 5



11. To develop and maintain a working knowledge of the Council's services, 
management arrangements, powers/duties, and constraints and to develop good 
working relationships with the relevant Officers of the Council. 
 

12. To lead by example and uphold the highest standards of conduct in public life 
and comply with the Code of Conduct and the Council's Constitution  
 

13. To undertake such training and development as the Council, the Standards 
Committee or the Member's own Group may recommend from time to time. 

 
 
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 
Responsible to: Kent County Council. 
 
Role purpose: To take full responsibility for all functions of the County Council, which 
the Council does not reserve for itself (as required by legislation), appointing a 
Cabinet and providing overall leadership and direction to the Council. 

 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. To manage and lead the work of the Cabinet and to chair meetings of the 

Cabinet and Corporate Board. 
 

2. To lead the Cabinet in decision making and make Executive decisions that are 
not exercised by other Cabinet Members or Officers. 
 

3. To work closely with Cabinet Members to ensure the development of effective 
Council policies and the delivery of high-quality services (reflecting the principles 
of Best Value) to local people. 
 

4. To be the focus for leading the Kent community. 
 

5. To represent the Council at national and local level, on outside bodies or in 
partnership with other agencies. 
 

6. To lead the Cabinet’s work in: 
 

• providing strategic direction to the Council by identifying a vision, corporate 
objectives, and priorities for services, 

• providing a lead on the development of corporate policies and strategies, 
• the development of the Council’s Policy Framework, 
• using the Council's objectives and priorities to drive the development of 

services and budget process, 
• seeing continuous improvement by establishing the appropriate culture within 

the Council and associated systems,  
• monitoring performance, 
• ensuring probity and financial monitoring,  
• keeping under review the organisation and management processes of the 

Council, including the democratic structures, and  

Page 6



• developing, in consultation and partnership with others, a strategy for 
providing the social, economic and environmental well-being of the County of 
Kent. 

 
7. To act as the principal spokesperson for the Council: 

 
• promoting its work and acting as its principal political spokesperson, 
• participating in consultation, 
• listening to, and taking account of, the views of organisations, the public and 

businesses, and  
• representing the Council at all appropriate levels. 

 
8. To consult with and be accountable to Non-Executive Members. 

 
9. To appear before, and respond to reports of, Overview and Scrutiny bodies. 

 
10. To monitor the effectiveness of service delivery and the appropriateness of 

policy across the County and account for the efficient and effective delivery of 
services and functions within Council policies and budgets. 
 

11. To lead and direct the Cabinet Members in working closely with the Corporate 
Management Team and senior managers of every function aligned to their 
portfolios in relation to the strategic vision and direction of the Council, the 
management roles of Officers and the development and effective delivery of 
policy issues. 
 

12. To work closely with the Corporate Board/Corporate Management Team and 
Senior Managers of every function to ensure that operationally the Council is 
providing an effective service to the residents of Kent. 
 

13. To work closely with Cabinet Committees in enabling them to contribute to policy 
development and decision making. 

 
DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
 
Responsible to: The Leader of the Council. 
 
Role Purpose: To deputise for the Leader as required and to be the Council’s main 
representative and spokesman on the delegated area of responsibility. 
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. To participate in the Cabinet in respect of all areas of work, including making 

certain individual Executive decisions within the areas of responsibility. 
 

2. To act as the Spokesperson and advocate for the Council in respect of the 
delegated area of responsibility and on a wider basis as the Leader may require 
or in their absence. 
 

Page 7



3. To lead the development of the Council’s Policy Framework within the area of 
responsibility and make recommendations to the Cabinet. 
 

4. To provide guidance to the Cabinet on the management and implementation of 
functions in relation to activities within the area of responsibility. 
 

5. To give guidance to the Cabinet on budget priorities within the areas of 
responsibility. 
 

6. To ensure the delivery of policy through Officers and monitor performance 
against agreed objectives within the defined area of responsibility. 
 

7. To assist the Leader in keeping under review the organisation and management 
processes of the Council, including the governance structures. 

 
8. To appear before, and respond to reports of, Scrutiny bodies.  

 
9. To lead the process of continuous improvement and responsiveness of Council 

services within the areas of responsibility. 
 

10. To ensure that activities within their areas of responsibility take proper account of 
the Council’s vision, core values and guiding principles. 
 

11. To represent the Council at national and local level, on outside bodies or in 
partnership with other agencies. 
 

12. To work closely with the Corporate Management Team and Senior Managers of 
every function to ensure that operationally the Council is providing an effective 
service to the residents of Kent. 
 

13. To work closely with Cabinet Committees in enabling them to contribute to policy 
development and decision making. 

 
CABINET MEMBER 
 
Responsible to: The Leader of the Council. 
 
Role purpose: To undertake portfolio responsibilities as delegated by the Leader and 
be the Council’s main representative and spokesman on their delegated areas of 
responsibility, determining the defined area of activity for Deputy Cabinet Members 
(if allocated) as appropriate. 
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. To participate in the Cabinet in respect of all areas of work, including making 

certain individual Executive decisions within the defined area of responsibility 
and contributing to debate and strategic decision-making as part of the Cabinet 
as a whole. 
 

Page 8



2. To act as the spokesperson and advocate for the Council in respect of the area 
of responsibility. 
 

3. To lead the development of the Council's policy framework within the defined 
area of responsibility and make recommendations to the Cabinet as appropriate. 
 

4. To provide guidance to the Cabinet on the management and implementation of 
functions in relation to activities within the defined area of responsibility. 
 

5. To give guidance to the Cabinet on budget priorities within the defined area of 
responsibility. 
 

6. To ensure the delivery of policy through Officers and monitor performance 
against agreed objectives within the defined area of responsibility. 
 

7. To assist the Leader in keeping under review the organisation and management 
processes of the Council, including the governance structures. 
 

8. To work constructively and in an open and transparent way with backbench and 
Opposition Members, and Officers to ensure that the process of Overview and 
Scrutiny is appropriate, effective, and proportionate. 
 

9. To appear before, and respond to reports of, Overview and Scrutiny bodies. 
 

10. To lead the process of continuous improvement and responsiveness of Council 
services within the defined area of responsibility. 
 

11. To ensure that activities within the defined area of responsibility take proper 
account of the Council's vision, core values and guiding principles. 
 

12. To represent the Council at national and local level, on outside bodies or in 
partnership with other agencies. 
 

13. To work closely with the Corporate Management Team and Senior Managers of 
every function aligned to their portfolio to ensure that operationally the Council is 
providing an effective service to the residents of Kent. 
 

14. To work closely with Cabinet Committees in enabling them to contribute to policy 
development and decision making. 

 
DEPUTY CABINET MEMBER 
 
Responsible to: The Cabinet Member. 
 
Role purpose: To support the work of their Cabinet Member and to be the Council’s 
Member champion for their areas of special responsibility. 
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 

Page 9



1. To support the Cabinet Member in respect of all activities connected with the 
area of special responsibility. 
 

2. To act as the Member champion and spokesman for the area of special 
responsibility both within and outside the Council. 
 

3. To support the Cabinet Member in the development of the Council's policy 
framework within the area of special responsibility and make recommendations 
to the Cabinet Member on the making of Executive decisions. 
 

4. To support the Cabinet Member in monitoring the management and 
implementation of functions in relation to activities within the area of special 
responsibility. 
 

5. To give guidance to their Cabinet Member on budget priorities within the area of 
responsibility. 
 

6. To ensure the delivery of policy through Officers and monitor performance 
against agreed objectives within the defined area of responsibility. 
 

7. To assist the Leader in keeping under review the organisation and management 
processes of the Council, including the governance structures. 
 

8. To work constructively and in an open and transparent way with backbench and 
Opposition Members, and Officers to ensure that the process of Overview and 
Scrutiny is appropriate, effective, and proportionate. 
 

9. To appear before and assist the Cabinet Member in responding to reports of, 
Overview and Scrutiny bodies. 
 

10. To support the Cabinet Member in driving forward the process of continuous 
improvement and responsiveness of Council services within the area of special 
responsibility. 
 

11. To ensure that activities within their areas of responsibility take proper account of 
the Council's vision, core values and guiding principles. 
 

12. To represent the Council at national and local level, on outside bodies or in 
partnership with other agencies, as agreed with the Cabinet Member. 
 

13. To support the Cabinet Member in working closely with the Corporate 
Management Team and Senior Managers of every function aligned to their 
portfolio to ensure that operationally the Council is providing an effective service 
to the residents of Kent. 
 

14. To assist the Leader and Cabinet Member to work closely with Cabinet 
Committees in enabling them to contribute to policy development and decision 
making. 

 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL   

Page 10



 
Responsible to: Kent County Council. 
 
Role purpose: As the Civic Head of the Council, to uphold the democratic values of 
the Council as a whole and represent the Council at civic and ceremonial functions. 
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. Provide strong, fair, and visible civic and ceremonial leadership to the Council in 

relation to citizens, stakeholders, partners, Members and Officers. 
 

2. Ensure that Kent County Council is represented at such civic and ceremonial 
functions as the Council or he/she determines appropriate. 
 

3. Be the principal ambassador for the Council and the County, both at home and 
abroad and formulate and deliver speeches as appropriate. 
 

4. Promote public involvement in the Council’s activities. 
 

5. Uphold and promote the Council’s Constitution and, if necessary, rule on the 
interpretation of the Constitution at formal meetings of the County Council. 
 

6. Preside over meetings of the Council, including determining the topic of the item 
for full debate, the order of items and a timetable for each Council meeting after 
consultation with the political group leaders, to ensure that the business of the 
Council can be carried out efficiently and with regard to the interests of the 
community and the rights of elected Members of all political groups and 
independent Members.  
 

7. Request such special meetings of the Council as may be considered necessary 
or appropriate by Members, determining their format in consultation as required 
by the circumstances and in accordance with the business to be discharged.   
 

8. Ensure the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters of concern to 
the local community and a place at which Members who are not on the 
Executive can challenge and debate Executive and other matters. 
 

9. Be consulted on any matter in relation to which consultation with the Chairman of 
the Council is required under the Constitution. 
 

10. During his/her year as Chairman, to continue to perform the duties expected of 
all County Councillors in relation to his/her electoral Division. 
 

11. To witness the sealing of official KCC legal documents in the period immediately 
after a County Council Election until such time as the Leader appoints his or her 
Cabinet. 
 

12. To foster and maintain good working relationships with other Local Authorities, 
both within and outside the County of Kent. 
 

Page 11



13. To act as the leading Civic dignitary in the conduct of Citizenship Ceremonies. 
 
VICE-CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL  
 
Responsible to: The Chairman of the County Council and Kent County Council. 
 
Role purpose: To fulfil the duties of the Chairman in his or her absence, to assist the 
Chairman in specific duties as required. 
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities 
 
1. To support the Chairman of the Council in carrying out his or her Civic 

responsibilities.   
 

2. Deputise as the Chairman may require in his or her absence. 
 

3. Undertake specific tasks and responsibilities as requested by the Chairman. 
 

4. Share and support in general the full workload range of the Chairman. 
 
COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN  
 
Responsible to: Kent County Council. 
 
Role purpose: To provide leadership and direction for the Committee to ensure that 
the Committee takes balanced decisions based on all relevant evidence, always with 
impartiality and fairness. 
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. Provide leadership and direction for the Committee. 

 
2. Chair and manage the business of the Committee, ensuring that all committee 

members have an opportunity to make a relevant contribution. 
 

3. Request such additional meetings of the Committee as may be considered 
necessary or appropriate. 
 

4. Promote the role of the Committee both within and outside the Council. 
 

5. Represent the Council and the Committee on relevant external bodies as 
required. 
 

6. Guide Members through those functions delegate by the Council to the 
Committee. 
 

7. To be consulted on matters of business between meetings. 
 

8. To undertake the necessary preparation prior to Committee meetings to lead the 
Committee effectively. 

Page 12



 
9. Ensure that the Committee takes balanced decisions based on all relevant 

evidence, always with impartiality and fairness. 
 

10. To manage the meeting to ensure the objectives of the meeting are fulfilled. 
 

11. Ensure, where appropriate, that there is full consultation with and participation by 
all interested parties on issues to be considered by the Committee.  
 

12. Ensure that Committee decisions are properly recorded with full justifications. 
 

13. Liaise and consult with relevant Officers wherever appropriate. 
 

14. To define and manage appropriate Member and Officer conduct at the meeting. 
 
CHAIRMAN OF A CABINET COMMITTEE 
 
Responsible to Kent County Council. 
 
Role Purpose: To lead the effective consideration of Cabinet Member decisions and 
to facilitate the Committee to endorse or make recommendations to the Cabinet 
Member prior to the decision being taken. Consider and make comment to the 
Cabinet and Cabinet Member on the development of County Council policy and 
review the performance of the Council in relation to its policy objectives and 
performance targets. 
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. To ensure that the work of the Cabinet Committee is at all times conducted in a 

positive manner and in the interests of the Council and the people of Kent. 
 

2. To work constructively and in an open and transparent way with the Executive 
Members and Officers. 
 

3. To assist the Council and Executive in the development of the policy framework 
and budget by an in-depth analysis of policy issues in the area/s for which they 
have special responsibility. 
 

4. To encourage and enhance community participation in the development of policy 
options in the areas for which they have special responsibility. 
 

5. To support the work of the Cabinet Committee in ensuring the effective operation 
of the Committee in their areas for which they have special responsibility which 
will: 

 
a. examine and review proposed decisions to be made by the Cabinet 

Member(s) for the areas in which they have special responsibility. 
 

b. Question the Cabinet Member(s) and senior Officers for the areas in which 
the Committee has special responsibility about their decisions and 

Page 13



performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and 
targets. 

 
ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CHAIRMAN OF THE SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 
 
Role purpose: To lead the effective Scrutiny of the Council’s decisions and actions 
and monitor policy development within appropriate areas of responsibility.  
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. To ensure that the work of the Scrutiny Committee (and any sub-committees 

thereof) is at all times conducted in a positive manner and in the best interests of 
the Council and the people of Kent. 
 

2. To work constructively and in an open and transparent way with Executive 
Members, the Cabinet Committees and Officers to ensure that the process of 
Overview and Scrutiny is appropriate, effective, and proportionate. 
 

3. To lead and support the Scrutiny Committee in ensuring the effective operation 
of a Scrutiny function which will: 

 
a. examine and review decisions made by the Cabinet, Cabinet Members other 

committees and Council Officers exercising Executive functions, 
 

b. question Members of the Cabinet, other appropriate committees, and senior 
Officers about their decisions, and 
 

c. make recommendations to the Leader, the Cabinet, a Cabinet Member, 
Officers and/or Council arising from the outcome of the Scrutiny process, the 
performance management of functions and service delivery. 

 
4. To scrutinise and review the County Council budget process. 

 
5. To lead and support Members in scrutinising authorities responsible in Kent for: 
 

a. Crime and Disorder Strategies. 
 

b. Risk management authorities of flood risk management functions or coastal 
risk functions. 

 
6. To support the development of an annual Scrutiny work programme, including 

the Select Committee Work Programme. 
 
ADDITIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CHAIRMAN OF THE PLANNING 
APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE 
 
Role Purpose: To provide leadership and direction for the Committee to ensure that 
the Committee takes balanced decisions based on all relevant evidence, always with 
impartiality and fairness. 

Page 14



 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. To Chair the monthly meetings of the Planning Applications Committee, which 

has statutory authority for determining all planning applications to KCC (waste 
and mineral related applications and all KCC developments including schools, 
highways, and social services applications). 
 

2. To undertake relevant and frequent training and development sessions to ensure 
that the role can be performed to the exacting standards required. 
 

3. To attend site visits, public meetings and meetings with Officers as required on a 
frequent basis. 

 
LEADER OF AN OPPOSITION GROUP  
 
Responsible to: Kent County Council. 
 
Role purpose: To provide strong, fair and visible leadership and direction to the 
Opposition Group within the Council. 
 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. Act as a spokesperson for the Group and as a representative of the Council to 

external bodies and organisations as appropriate. 
 

2. Represent the interests of the Group in any discussions with the Leader of the 
Council, other Group Leaders, other Senior Members of the Council or Senior 
Officers. 
 

3. Be responsible for the appointment of Group Members to seats on Council 
Bodies in accordance with the Council’s political balance apportionments. 
 

4. Comment on, challenge and review the majority Group’s performance in the 
coordination and implementation of its policies and procedures. 
 

5. Be the Group’s principal consultee on Council business in general and establish 
and represent the views of the Group on issues of policy and probity. 
 

6. With all Group Leaders, work with the Corporate Management Team on relevant 
corporate matters. 
 

7. Support the learning and development needs of all Members of the Group. 
 
DEPUTY LEADER OF AN OPPOSITION GROUP  
 
Responsible to: Kent County Council. 
 
Role purpose: To fulfil the duties of the Leader of an Opposition Group in his or her 
absence, to assist the Group Leader in specific duties as required. 

Page 15



 
Main Duties and Responsibilities: 
 
1. Undertake a full deputising role in the absence of the Leader of the Group. 

 
2. Undertake specific tasks and responsibilities as requested by the Leader of the 

Group. 
 

3. Work actively with the Leader of the Group to co-ordinate the work of the Group. 
 

4. Share and support in general the full workload range of the Leader of the Group. 
 
 

Page 16



 
From:   Ben Watts, General Counsel  
 
To:    Selection and Member Services Committee, 28 October 2024 
 
Subject: Appointment of the Member Remuneration Panel 
 
Status: Unrestricted 
 
 
 

 
1. Introduction  
 
a) The current Member Allowances Scheme comes to an end on 31 March 2025. 

It is the responsibility of County Council to agree a new scheme.  Before 
making any decisions on changing the scheme, or updating the scheme, the 
Council must have before it recommendations prepared by an independent 
Member Remuneration Panel (MRP).  
 

b) The practice of the Council has been to appoint MRP members to four year 
terms. The current Panel’s term of office concludes on 31 October 2024.  

 
c) This role of this Committee is to nominate three individuals for appointment to 

the MRP by full Council. 
 
2. Monitoring Officer Recommendations 
 
a) In order to maintain a separation between the Members and the recruitment of 

the Panel responsible for making recommendations on allowances, the 
Monitoring Officer is responsible for the recruitment exercise and making 
recommendations to this Committee. 
 

b) Following a public advertisement exercise on the County Council website, 
shortlisting and interviews were undertaken by Officers within Governance, 
Law and Democracy. The outcome is that the following three individuals are 
being recommended: 

 
a. Malvern Chirume. 
b. Karen Price. 
c. Roisin Reynolds.  

 
c) CVs of the individuals named above have been made available to Members of 

this Committee. None are members of the current Panel. The appropriate pre-
employment checks are being conducted and any appointment will be subject 
to these being completed satisfactorily. 

 
3. Member Remuneration Panel Reviews  
 
a) As agreed by this Committee on 9 March 2023, and subsequently endorsed by 

County Council, the Panel will be asked to first produce recommendations for a 
one-year Member Allowances Scheme covering 2025/26. The new Panel will 
be able to commence work on this following the official start of their term once 
formally appointed by full Council.  
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



 
b) The Panel will then be asked to make recommendations for the next four-year 

scheme covering April 2026 to March 2030. This will mean that following this 
transition period, each four-year scheme will be offset from the election year. 
This will mean clarity for individuals considering standing for election, and will 
enable the new Council to consider what will be needed for the next scheme.  

 
4. Recommendation 

 
The Selection and Member Services Committee is asked to recommend Malvern 
Chirume, Karen Price, and Roisin Reynolds to County Council for appointment to 
the Member Remuneration Panel for a four-year term commencing 1 November 
2024.  
 
5. Exempt Appendix 
 
The Appendix is restricted to Members of the Committee under section 15.15(a) of 
the Constitution.  
 
6. Background Documents 
 
None. 
 
7. Report Author and Relevant Director  
 
Ben Watts, General Counsel  
03000 416814  
benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk 
 
Tristan Godfrey, Senior Governance Manager 
03000 411704 
tristan.godfrey@kent.gov.uk  

Page 18

mailto:benjamin.watts@kent.gov.uk
mailto:tristan.godfrey@kent.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Member Role Descriptions
	Appendix Member Role Descriptions
	Appendix - Member Role Descriptions


	4 Member Remuneration Panel Appointment
	EXEMPT Appendix MRP Candidates


